
 

 

 

 

LEEDS SCHOOL FORUM 
 

 
Meeting to be held on 

Tuesday, 19th July, 2022 at 4.30 pm 
 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Peter McQuillen Strong, J. Leeds Catholic Diocese 
Maria Williams, E. Academy Reps - Brigshaw High School 
Gavin Hosford, E. Academy Reps - Green Meadows 
Rachel Colbourn, E. Academy Reps - Bramhope Primary 
Andrew Neal, A. Primary Governor - Adel St John Primary 
Jatinder Ubhi, A. Primary Governor - Swarcliffe Primary 
Dave Kagai, A. Primary Governors - St Nicholas Primary 
Sue Tuck, A. Primary Governor - Ireland Wood Primary 
Sarah Talbot, E. Academy Reps - East Ardsley Primary 
John Garvani (LSF), A. Primary Governors - Broadgate Primary School 
John Hutchinson, B. Primary Heads - St Theresa's Catholic Primary 
Claire Harrison, B. Primary Heads - Wetherby Deighton Gates Primary 
Barbara Trayer, B. Secondary Governors - Allerton Grange Secondary 
Helen Stott, B. Primary Heads - Allerton C of E Primary 
Peter Harris, B. Primary Heads - Farsley Farfield Primary 
Julie Harkness, B. Primary Heads - Carr Manor Community school - Primary Phase 
Emma Wraight, B. Primary Heads - Fieldhead Carr Primary 
David Webster, C. Secondary Governors - Pudsey Grammar 
Delia Martin, D. Secondary Heads - Benton Park 
David Gurney, E. Academy Reps - Cockburn School 
Rob Dixon, E. Academy Rep, Pudsey Waterloo Primary 
Neil Miley, E. Academy Reps - Dixons Academy 
John Thorne, E. Academy Reps - St Mary's Academy Menston 
Joe Barton, E. Academy Reps - Woodkirk Academy 
Russell Trigg, F. Governor East SILC 
Mary Ruggles, H. Academy Specialist Provision - Springwell Academy 
Diane Reynard, I. Special School Principal  - East / NW SILC - SILC Principals 
Louise Turner, J. 16-19 Providers - Leeds City College 
Helen Gration, J. Non School PVI - Nursery Provider 
Angela Hynes, J. Non School PVI - Nursery Provider 
Patrick Murphy, J. Non School - Schools JCC 
Dan Cohen (Leeds School Forum), J. Jewish Faith Schools 
Jo Smithson, B. Primary Heads - Greenhill Primary 

 

Public Document Pack



 
2 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Tile Lead Time Purpose 

1.   
 

HIGH NEEDS SUPPLEMENTARY 
FUNDING 
3 - 6 
 

Lucie McAulay 16:30 
 

For information 
 



1 
 

Report of the Director of Children and Families                                            

Report to the Leeds Schools Forum 

Date: 23rd June 2022 

Subject: High Needs Supplementary Funding 2022-23  

Report Author: Lucie McAulay Contact telephone number:  0113 3788766 

 
 
Summary of main issues 
 

1 High needs supplementary funding to provide for the costs of the Health and Social Care 
Levy and wider costs of £4.147m has been allocated to Leeds for 2022 to 2023. The 
additional funding also takes into account that colleges and other post-school providers 
offering extra hours of study to 16 to 19 year old students, may require extra high needs 
top-up funding to support such students with high needs. 

2 It is for each local authority to decide how to allocate the additional funding to those 
schools, with the same flexibilities as deployed to the rest of the DSG allocation of high 
needs funding. 

3 It is proposed that the supplementary funding is allocated to increase FFI rates, meet 
additional outside placement costs, invest in transformational work, and reserve some 
funding to mitigate risks on future DSG deficits as detailed below: 

Allocation of the Supplementary Grant 

  2022/23 

  £000s 

 Increase in Top Up unit rates     1,500 

 Out of Area and Residential Placements    1,500 

 16-19 additional hours and flexibilities      200 

 DSG contingency / reserve        947 

Total Allocations       4,147 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



2 
 

Recommendations 
 

4 Schools Forum is asked to note the proposals outlined in the report. 

 

1 Background information 

1.1 The autumn 2021 spending review confirmed £1.6 billion of funding for schools and high 
needs, for the 2022 to 2023 financial year, above the previous settlement for that year. 

1.2 In the 2022 to 2023 financial year, maintained schools and academies will be allocated 
£1.2 billion of this additional funding, to provide support for the costs of the Health and 
Social Care Levy and wider costs. This funding will be allocated through the schools 
supplementary grant 2022 to 2023, the allocation for Leeds is £18m. 

1.3 In addition to the schools supplementary grant, local authorities have been allocated £325 
million additional high needs funding for 2022 to 2023, on top of the dedicated schools 
grant high needs block allocations, calculated under the national funding formula.  The 
additional high needs allocation to Leeds is £4.147m.  

1.4 Both the schools supplementary grant and the high needs supplementary grant are one off 
grant payments for 2022 to 2023, however from 2023 to 2024 onwards this additional 
funding will be assumed within the base DSG allocations under the national funding 
formula. 

1.5 Due to the difference in funding, and costs, for Special Schools and Alternative Provision 
the ESFA has deemed it not appropriate to centrally set a supplementary per-pupil funding 
rate as has been applied for the supplementary grant for mainstream schools.  Therefore it 
is for each local authority to decide how to allocate the additional funding to those schools, 
with the same flexibilities as are deployed to the rest of the DSG allocation of high needs 
funding. 

2 Main issues 

2.1 Following the initial announcement of the supplementary funding in December 2021, early 
indications were that it was expected this would be passed out to settings to reflect the 
additional cost as a result of the Health and Social Care levy.  However, the ESFA 
subsequently clarified that the pressure of the levy would equate to less than 1% of the 
overall high needs budget.  For Leeds, this would equate to under £1m which would leave 
£3.147m to contribute to additional cost pressures which were not anticipated when the 
funding allocations were published. 

2.2 To determine the most effective allocation of the remaining supplementary funding, all cost 
pressures from across the full range of settings and services funded from the High Needs 
Block have been considered. Information obtained from other local authorities 
demonstrates that a range of solutions have been identified in the allocation of the 
supplementary grant with no consistent approach. 

Page 4



3 
 

2.3 Settings currently receiving FFI top up of £650 per unit will receive an increase to £672 per 
unit, this will be backdated to April 2022.  This £22 unit increase represents a 3.4% 
increase in the unit rate.  For special school setting, the unit rate will be increased from 
£684 to £708 (which equates to an increase of 3.51%).  These increases are expected to  
equate to additional total top up payments of up to £1.5m.  The FFI unit rate will be 
reviewed in future years in accordance with the level of high needs funding received. 

2.4 Out of Area and Residential Placements are facing growing budget challenges due to 
increased demand and costs.  To address these continued budget pressures it is 
proposed that £1.5m of the supplementary grant will be allocated to minimise any impact 
on the overall DSG position.  This represents an increase of 12.6% on the initial budget 
reported to Schools Forum in February 2022. 

2.5 The supplementary funding also takes into account that post 16 institutions offering extra 
hours of study to students with high needs may require additional funding. Institutions and 
local authorities are required to work together in deciding what constitutes an equivalent of 
additional time for a student with high needs, and/or with an EHCP.  Work is ongoing on 
this issue and initial estimates are that this will cost an additional £200k. 

2.6 The Covid pandemic has seen major disruption to children and young people’s education.  
There is now a significant rise in requests from schools and settings to support children 
and young people with communication, learning, and social emotional and mental health 
issues.  Many children are finding a return to school extremely difficult manifesting in high 
levels of anxiety and acting out behaviours.  In addition to this, the recent Schools Bill, the 
SEND green paper and the newly proposed SEND inspection framework that scrutinises 
all partners, puts an even greater emphasis on inclusion within mainstream schools and 
building staff knowledge and skills. 

2.7 Alongside the need to increase capacity to meet highly complex special educational needs 
there is therefore an immediate need to rebalance the system and to roll out and embed 
the Leeds SEND practice framework to support early identification and best practice in line 
with the SEND Code of Practice and the graduated approach as identified in Leeds SEND 
strategy and in line with this national picture. The proposed “SEND early support team” is 
the vehicle by which we aim to work with schools to boost capacity within this agenda. 

2.8 As a result of these issues, the initial high needs budget included £600k to support 
transformational work across areas of the High Needs budget.  In a full year, an additional 
£400k will be allocated on an Invest to Save basis to further develop and progress actions 
to deliver savings and efficiencies to give a total budget of £1m.  However as recruitment 
has not yet taken place, it is expected that the initial £600k will be sufficient to cover the 
costs in 2022/23.  In order to ensure funding is available in future years, the additional 
£400k will be set aside to add to the DSG reserves in 2022/23.  The Invest to Save 
allocation will be subject to a robust challenge process to ensure delivery of savings and 
efficiencies.   

2.9 Taking into consideration the proposed allocations there remains a total unallocated sum 
of £947k.  Although the 2021/22 DSG Outturn position demonstrates a small DSG surplus 
of £119k there remains a level of uncertainty regarding the future DSG.  Therefore to 
mitigate future DSG pressures it would be prudent to allocate the remaining £947k to a 
DSG reserve to ensure that we minimise any future DSG deficits.  

Page 5



4 
 

2.10 Over previous years, demand has been difficult to predict and along with expected 
significant inflationary cost pressures, it is estimated that there will be an increase in 
costs in 2022/23 and subsequent years.  In addition, funding in future years is as yet 
unknown and subject to unknown levels of capping.  In order to guard against possible 
future DSG deficit reduction plans and therefore have a need to come back to Schools 
Forum with options to cut costs, it seems prudent to set aside a proportion of the 
supplementary grant to fund emerging pressures in future years. Of the 2022/23 total 
high needs block allocation, it is expected that over 91% will be passported to 
institutions. 

2.11 Below is a summary of the proposed allocation of the allocation of the total High Needs 
supplementary grant of £4.147m: 

Allocation of the Supplementary Grant 

   2022/23 

      £000s 

 Increase in Top Up unit rates          1,500 

 Out of Area and Residential Placements         1,500 

 16-19 additional hours and flexibilities             200 

 DSG contingency / reserve              947 

 Total Allocations                     4,147 

  

2.12 Schools Forum is asked to note the proposals for the allocation of the High Needs 
Supplementary Funding 2022/23. 

Page 6


	Agenda
	1 High Needs Supplementary Funding

